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2, Boundaries

Begin at the northeastern limit of the property line of Laurel Mill (owned by
William Holmes) where it crosses S.R. 1432. TFollow this property line along
this road west and southwest to a point 100 feet east of the east bank of
Sandy Creek (south of S.R. 1432). Going south, continue along a line 100
feet east of the creek to a point 50 feet south of the south bank of Richland
Creek. Then go west and then southwest, following a line 50 feet south of
the bank of Richland Creek as it meanders, to a point 100 yards east of the
Colonel Jones House. Then go north along a line 100 yards east of the
Colonel Jones House to the middle of S.R. 1432. Then go southeast along this
road to a point 200 yards west of the west bank of Sandy Creek. Then north
along a line 200 yards west of this west bank to a point even with the back
property line of the Laurel Mill property. Then west along this line to the

beginning.
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{7, DESCRIPTION

(Check One)

[ Excellent (X Good [ Fair [T] Deteriorated I:] Ruins [} Unexposed
CONDITION e | (Check One)
£ Altered [] Unaltered [J Moved §] Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The road from Moulton to Gupton crosses Sandy Creek in a wide valley |

between two gradually sloping hills. Here, at the junction of two roads

and two creeks (Richland and Sandy), was once the busy little town of Laurel.
It is no longer marked on maps, but the mill that remains bears the name.

On the south side of the road, at the crest of the hill overlooking the
creek, from the west, stands the Colonel J., F. Jones House, a frame raised
cottage in vernacular Greek Revival-~Italianate style; on the north side of
the road, on the east bank of the creek, stands Taurel Mill, a grist mill
that is ‘the only standing vestige of Jones's once-flourishing industrial
complex that operated on both sides of Sandy Creek. Contemporary photographs
show the other industrial buildings that stood on the west side of the creek|

The frame mill building is two stories tall above large stone piers that
rise from a stone bluff or outcropping and support the building well out over
the water. Thers is evidence in the foundation and timbers--most notably a
double sill runnizz north-south midway the building-—that the portion of the
building nearest tz2 water may predate the rest of the structure. In
addition, among to-= rubble of the foundation farthest from the water is a
piece of millstons—=zsuggesting of course that that part was built after
there had been a wZ"” on the site for some time. The stark height and
zable~roof building are typical of nineteenth century

simple finish of th-

grist mills. It iz = *uYJlne mill; the turbine machinery located beneath
the building can bz viewed from the open area beneath the part of building
on the rock outcrccoz -g. Alsc located beneath the building is a recently-
installed over=sho: -~heel, which runs but does not provide the power to the

millstones.

Inside, the arrangement of machinery is also typical of grist mills of
the period and arzz. The millstones and mill crane stand on a raised plat—
form in the northwsst corner of the buildings, and the two stories and attic
contain the chutes, bins, and other equipment necessary for the working of
the mill., (The present owner grinds meal on a limited scale.) On one of
the doors, in the evidently newer section, is painted inscription, "Finished
July 23, 1909. Put in new water house and breast, July 1909. 'J. R. Parrishd

In contrast to the functional plainness of the mill is the fashionable
character of the dwelling that overlooks it., The frame cottage stands one
story over a raised brick basement, TIts four-square proportions and heavy
bracketed cornice are typical of the vernacular Greek Revival-Italianate
style popular in the area in the 1850s. Several elements are similar to the

arge house at Cascine and to the Williamson House in Louisburg; some
features, too, are somewhat similar to the Italianate mode of Warrenton
builder Jacob Holt, but the similarities are mot strong enough to attribute
the building to him with certainty.

The facades are defined by cornerposts treated as fluted Doric pilasters
which rise from pedestals that break out from the brick foundation. The
cornerposts carry a wide plain frieze adorned by rather ornate pendent
brackets that support the heawvy overhang of the hip roof. The brackets do
not recur on the rear facade, The main (north) facade is three bays wide,

with the center bay, a double door, protected by an entrance porch. Paired
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porch posts treated like the cornerposts carry a wide frieze with brackets
paired over the posts. The sides of the porch are protected by a balustrade
with small chamfered balusters between a2 rounded rail and simple base. The’
posts recur as pilasters on the facade.

are two widely spaced bays deep. At the first bay of the east side has been
constructed a small one-story extension. Another one-bay addition replaces the
original rear porch.

Within, the house has a surprisingly spacious character. The main floor
follows a center-hall plan, two rooms deep, with the stair descending to the
basement midway tz=z= hall, along the west wall. The walls are plastered above
high, molded basz-cards, which do not break out at the architrave base as is
typical of Holt's =ork but stop short of the architrave. Heavy molded archi-

raves frame doorz with four flat panels outlined by Greek Revival moldings;
they are hung on r-=7-zg butt-plate hinges. The mantels in the house, however,

are quite similar -~ Zhose found in Holt's houses. That in the front east
room has pilasters -zrrying a frieze, each of which is ornamented by a long
thin panel termina:z—z at each end in a spear-head design. That in the front
west room has fluts’ silasters and a fluted frieze band. Other mantels are of

simple Greek Revivz_ design. The basement has largely been refinished.

GPO 921.724

Six~over—six windows are framed by plain architraves. The side elevations|




[} Pre-Columbian!

PERIOD . (check One or More as Approprlate)

] 16th Century
[T] 17th Century

O3 18th Century 7 20th Century

% 19th Century .

NSTRUCTIONS

I

EE

S

STATEMENT'OF‘ SIGNIFICANCE
Laurel Mill, located on Sandy Creek, is the only operating grist mill

in Franklin County and is an important vestige of industry once vital in an
overwhelmingly agricultural county. It is all that remains of the ambitious
local industrial complex=-including a saw mill, grist mill, and an early

cotton factory--run by Jordan F. Jones in the last half of the nineteenth -
century. Overlooking the creek is the small but impressive raised cottage,
probably bullt for Jones in the 18503. : : o

ColonelJordan F. Jones was born in Franklin County on November 24,
1821, near the crossroads at Sandy Creek called Laurel, Little is known of
his early years. In 1847 he married Lucy Stamper. In 1849 he was deeded
from his father, Amos, 150 acres, '"land and premises lying North of the
road from Perrys mill to.the late residence of Peter Foster,”" In the same
year Amos Jones died, and at the sale following his death, J. F. Jones
bought additional land, 190 and 30 acres, "on the waters of Richland and
Sandy Creeks:;" he bought other land in 1850 in the same neighborhood. The
assemblage about 1850 of a sizeable tract of land near the confluence of
Richland and Sandy creeks——at the Laurel crossroads-—-and the appearance of
the vernacular ITtalianate house, much like others in Franklin and Warren

Cn October 29. 1860, J. F., Jones purchased from Joshua Perry for
$9.000, "“his Mills and land on Sandy Creek,'" containing fourteen acres,
including "half an acre in front of the saw mill the right and title of
said land and mills with all appurtenances." This is presumably the "Perry"
mill" used in the 1849 deed (above) as a landmark. In 1851 Perry had taken
out $400 worth of insurance on his saw mill on Sandy Creek; it measured
44x18, had a vertical wheel, and one saw. The 1860 Census listed five
industrial concerns, with Joshua Perry's "manufacturing mill" the second
largest, evaluated at $10,000.

[02)

North Carolina Business directories after the Civil War show the ex—
pansion of J. F. Jones's commercial-industrial enterprises. He had a dry
goods store at Louisburg as early as 1867, and a mill "near Louisburg."
(This may be Laurel, which was not yet a post office, or it may be just
south of Louisburg, where he is said to have had a mill as well.) The
1869 and 1872 entries were similar. By 1878, Laurel is listed as a post
office, and Jones is noted as having at Laur2l 2 cotton factory, store,

grist flour, and saw mill. Thi

V3

is confirmed by the 1878 report of the

T3 15th Century
SPECIFIC DATE(S) (Il.APpli.cBble and Known) 1850s, 1860s L ;j 0 %’ WO ] ?ﬁ? & 4 {jgzj J{)
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Abor ;gmal O Education 17 Political o {3 -Urban Planning
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caunties of the 1850s, make an 1850s date for the dwelling reasonably certain.
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state Board of Agriculture on industries and resources %n North Cgrolina,
listing J. F. Jones as proprietor of the Laurel @ill, with 612 spindles, a
capacity of 400 pounds of cotton per day, prod?c1ng yarns, énd value@ at‘
$15,000. The cotton mill was described as having been put in operation in
1875. The 1890 business directory shows at Laurel, owned by J. F. Jones,

a cotton wmanufactory with 650 spindles; a public gin run by water; a store;
and a flour and corn mill. Also at Laurel were P. F. Gupton's steam-run
public gin and John R. Bobbitt's general store. By 18963 a creamery and
wagon factory,-owned by Jones, had been added. An 1898 industrial report
noted that this was the most important utilization of water power.on Sandy'
Creek, that the '"dam is of wood and stone, 50 feet long, 5 feet high, backlng
the water one mile, and giving a fall of 12 feet, with a race 60 feet long.
The power is ussd Tor a grist and saw mill, and for a cotton—xgrn factory.
with 650 spindles. using perhaps, in all, 40 or 50 horsepower. '(¥n the
nineteenth centurr, Franklin County produced considerable quantities of
cotton, butthis Z:= zo longer true.)

Along with t--: documented information about Jones's endeavors, there is
considerable loca. -rzdition concerning the prominent businessman's enter-—
prising and invent-—:= =fforts. A report in the 1930s credited him with
founding "the thir: spinning mill established in N, C. . « . in 1867," and
with inventing "th= zutomatic winding machine used today in cotton mills,"

as well as a "meczzoical corn planter’ in 1875. His obituary described him

as "the only cott:= manufacturer in the county" at one time, and a "fine
mechanic, having rzceived the premium for a cectton elevator." ’ '

A local histcry described Jones as "the pioneer millman of this section."
It noted that "those small bales of Laurel cotton yarns were a regular feature
on the shelves of many stores in all this section for years, while his own
mule and horse teams carried the bulk of his product through sand to Henderson
for shipment elsewhere."

Jordan F. Jones died at the age of eighty-five, on December 28, 1906,
having outlived all his children and three of his four wives. He died inte-
state, and the settling of his estate among his mauy grandchildren took
several years. An advertisement in the Franklin Times, February 24, 1909,
proclaimed, '"Famous Jones Mill and Residence and Other Valuable Town and
Country Property to be Sold at Public Auction." Among the properties listed
were "The Mansion House tract," which included stables and outbuildings; the
"Store House Tract, adjoining the Mansion House tract," and the "Mill and Cin
tract.'" G. W, Ford, a businessman and partner in a Louisburg tobacco ware—
house, purchased the Mansion House and Mill tracts at auction for $10,175.
The two tracts stayed in common ownership until recent vears, when the house
was purchased by Louis Waskey and the mill by William Holmes. Both are now
being kept in good condition, and the mill is running again, a project of
Mr. Holmes's retirement.
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CORNER LATITUDE LORGITUDE ) LATITUDE LONGITUDE
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees. Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
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ORGANIZATION DATE

Division of Archives and History 27 January 1975

STREET AND NUMBER:

109 East Jones Street
CITY OR TOWN: S5TATE coD=s
Raleigh North Carolina _

fON

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law

89-565), 1 hereby nominate this property for inclusion

I hereby certify thal this property is included in the

National Register.

in the National Register and certify that it has been

evaluated according to the c-iteria and procedures set

th by the National Park Service. The recommended - - - -
forth by the I Director, Office of Archeolagy and Historic Preservation

Nefiongl {8 Local (5
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Narme 3

= ot : ATTEST:
Roberk E. Stipe
\,
Title Stakte Historic Preservation
Gfficer Keeper of The National Register
lf Date

Date 77 Jaruacy 1975
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Laurel Mill and Colonel Jordan Jones's
Gupton vicinity
North Carolina
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North Carolina Highway Commission Map (no USGS available)
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